
          

 

 

CAPTAIN’S KEY 
DEPENDENT DISTRICT 

 

PALM BEACH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

NOVEMBER 8, 2022 
6:00 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.captainskeydd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 

    



 
AGENDA 

CAPTAIN’S KEY DEPENDENT DISTRICT 
The Oaks Center at 2501A 

Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens 
Florida 33410 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
November 8, 2022 

6:00 p.m. 
 

            
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………….Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. September 13, 2022 Regular Board Meeting…………………………………………………..Page 2 

G. Old Business 

1. Consider Approval of Easement Encroachment Request……………………………………….Page 5 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Approval of Shenandoah Drain Cleaning Proposal (Captains Lndg. Cul-De-Sac)…..Page 21 

2. Consider Resolution No. 2022-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Amended Budget……Page 22 

3. Consider Approval of Auditor Renewal………………………………………………………...Page 26 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Financial Report………………………………………………………………………………...Page 27 

2. Consider Invoices……………………………………………………………………………….Page 31 

J. Board Members Comments 

K. Adjourn 



Page 1



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

CAPTAIN’S KEY DEPENDENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 13, 2022 
 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Jason Pierman called the September 13, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the 
Captain’s Key Dependent District (the “District”) to order at 6:15 p.m. at The Oaks Center located at 
2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Mr. Pierman presented proof of publication that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the Palm Beach Daily Business Review on October 1, 2021, as part of the District’s 
Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Meeting Schedule, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
Mr. Pierman determined that the attendance of Chairman John Banister, Vice Chairman Russell Jones 
and Supervisor Trey Mahoney constituted a quorum and it was in order to proceed with the meeting.   
 
Staff in attendance included:  District Manager Jason Pierman and James Candela of Special District 
Services, Inc. 
 
Also present were District residents Karen Noga and Christine Jones. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  June 14, 2022, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting 
 
Mr. Pierman presented the minutes of June 14, 2022, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting for 
approval.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Mahoney, seconded by Mr. Jones approving the minutes of the June 14, 
2022, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting, as presented, and upon being put to a vote, the 
motion carried unanimously. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Update Regarding Drainage Report and Sinkhole 
 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Mr. Pierman noted that the work had been completed at the Jones’ and George’s properties and read 
the report from Shenandoah.  Mr. Jones noted that they think they did a good job and that they would 
add additional fill to level the area. 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Shenandoah Drain Cleaning Proposal (Captains Landing Cul-De-Sac) 
 
Mr. Pierman explained that Mr. Noga had contacted him about the pipe by their property and asked 
if it could be reviewed.  He noted that Shenandoah had reviewed it and presented a proposal to clean 
the line.  Following discussion, Ms. Noga noted that there may be a leak in that pipe, due to the fact 
that the ground was eroding in that area.   Mr. Jones noted that, if the mangroves were penetrating the 
pipe, it should be replaced.  Further discussion noted that the line may be loose and in need of an end 
cap.  The Board consensus was to ask Shenandoah for a proposal to replace the metal (CMP) portion 
of the pipe, and to add an end support. 
 
 2.  Consider Easement Encroachment Request 
 
Mr. Pierman explained that Mr. Banister had requested an agreement allowing him to have his dock 
on the District easement, and that he had modelled the draft agreement off of another District to suit 
the situation.  He explained that, should the Board move forward with granting the easement, it would 
be sent to the District attorney for review prior to execution.  Mr. Pierman also noted that Mr. Banister 
had completed a conflict form, and that he would not be voting on the issue.  Mr. Jones stated that he 
does not think an encroachment agreement is necessary and that the District should not expend funds 
on its review.  He further noted that he does not believe that the District has the right to grant the 
agreement and that he does not have an issue with Mr. Banister having his boat there and was not 
asking him to move the board lift, but rather that he believes Mr. Banister can go ahead and replace 
the lift with his existing permits and authorizations.  Following discussion, Mr. Banister requested 
that the item be tabled for future discussion.   
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

 
Mr. Pierman noted that November was quickly approaching and asked the Board if they would like 
to install flowers, and if so, at what cost.  Following discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Mahoney, 
seconded by Mr. Jones and unanimously passed to install flowers along the inside landscaping, as 
well as at the front entrance, for a not-to-exceed amount of $1,200.   

 
1.  Financial Report 

 
 2.  Consider Invoices 
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Noga requested that the Colusa and fichus hedge be trimmed.  A motion was made by Mr. Jones, 
seconded by Mr. Mahoney, and unanimously passed to have the trimming completed. 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Jones, seconded 
by Mr. Mahoney and unanimously passed adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 7:15 p.m. 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 
 

Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
CAPTAIN’S KEY DEPENDENT DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND 
ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022 
BUDGET (“AMENDED BUDGET”), PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 189, 
FLORIDA STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Captain’s Key Dependent District 
(“District”) is empowered to provide a funding source and to impose special assessments upon 
the properties within the District; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has prepared for consideration and approval an Amended 
Budget. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE CAPTAIN’S KEY DEPENDENT DISTRICT, THAT: 
  

                  Section 1. The Amended Budget for Fiscal Year 2021/2022 attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A” is hereby approved and adopted. 

 
 Section 2. The Secretary/Assistant Secretary of the District is authorized to execute 

any and all necessary transmittals, certifications or other acknowledgements or writings, as 
necessary, to comply with the intent of this Resolution. 

 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 8th day of November, 2022 
. 
 

 

ATTEST: CAPTAIN’S KEY  
 DEPENDENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 
 

Page 22



Captain's Key
Dependent District

Amended Final Budget For
Fiscal Year 2021/2022

October 1, 2021  - September 30, 2022

Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



 Captain's Key
Dependent District

   Financial Report For
September 2022

Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



 11:49 AM
 10/28/22
 Accrual Basis

 Captain's Key Dependent District

 Check Register
 As of October 28, 2022

Date Num Name Memo Credit

101.125 ꞏ CSB # 6006

09/02/2022 FPL 56.31

09/02/2022 Frontsteps 315.00

09/02/2022 Greentone Irrigation 79.00

09/02/2022 Seacoast Utility Authority 869.91

09/02/2022 SDS 1,957.16

09/15/2022 Comcast 198.40

09/16/2022 Frontsteps 315.00

09/16/2022 Power Plant Landscaping Services 1,150.00

09/16/2022 Shenandoah General Construction 3,000.00

10/04/2022 FPL 55.44

10/04/2022 Greentone Irrigation 79.00

10/04/2022 Seacoast Utility Authority 770.55

10/04/2022 SDS Assesment Roll Preparation 2,500.00

10/04/2022 SDS 1,932.25

10/06/2022 Shenandoah General Construction 8,700.00

10/17/2022 ALM Media 113.23

10/17/2022 Comcast 198.40

10/18/2022 Egis Insurance Advisors 5,814.00

10/18/2022 Frontsteps 315.00

10/18/2022 Power Plant Landscaping Services 2,835.00

Total 101.125 ꞏ CSB # 6006 31,253.65

TOTAL 31,253.65

 Page 1 of 1Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62


	Captain's Key Dependent District - November 8, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	September 13, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Approval of Easement Encroachment Request
	Consider Approval of Shenandoah Drain Cleaning Proposal (Captains Lndg Cul-De-Sac)
	Consider Resolution No. 2022-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Amended Budget
	Consider Approval of Auditor Renewal
	Financial Report
	Consider Invoices




